
City of Capitola Agenda

Mayor: Kristen Petersen

Vice Mayor: Yvette Brooks

Council Members: Jacques Bertrand

Ed Bottorff

Sam Storey

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 24, 2020

7 PM

PLEASE REVIEW THE NOTICE OF REMOTE ACCESS AT THE END OF
THE AGENDA FOR HOW TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS MEETING & 

SUBMIT PUBLIC COMMENT

CLOSED SESSION – 5 PM
An announcement regarding the items to be discussed in Closed Session will be made in 
the City Hall Council Chambers prior to the Closed Session.  Members of the public may, at 
this time, address the City Council on closed session items only.  There will be a report of 
any final decisions in City Council Chambers during the Open Session Meeting.

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 
(Gov’t Code § 54957.6)

 
A. Negotiators: Jamie Goldstein, Larry Laurent

Employee Organizations: (1) Association of Capitola Employees; (2) Police Captains;  
3) Mid-Management Group; (4) Department Heads; (5) Capitola Police Officers 
Association

  
B.  Negotiator: Jamie Goldstein

 Employee Organization: Confidential Employees

C.  Negotiator: Samantha Zutler
 Employee: City Manager



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
November 24, 2020

City of Capitola Page 2 Updated 11/20/2020 2:40 PM

REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL - 7 PM
All correspondences received prior to 5:00 p.m. on the Wednesday preceding a Council 
Meeting will be distributed to Councilmembers to review prior to the meeting.  Information 
submitted after 5 p.m. on that Wednesday may not have time to reach Councilmembers, nor 
be read by them prior to consideration of an item.

All matters listed on the Regular Meeting of the Capitola City Council Agenda shall be 
considered as Public Hearings.

1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Council Members Jacques Bertrand, Ed Bottorff, Yvette Brooks, Sam Storey, and Mayor 
Kristen Petersen

2. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION

3. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS

Additional information submitted to the City after distribution of the agenda packet.

4. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS

Please review the Notice of Remote Access for instructions. 

6. CITY COUNCIL / STAFF COMMENTS

City Council Members/Staff may comment on matters of a general nature or identify issues 
for staff response or future council consideration. No individual shall speak for more than 
two minutes.

7. CONSENT CALENDAR

All items listed in the “Consent Calendar” will be enacted by one motion in the form listed 
below.  There will be no separate discussion on these items prior to the time the Council 
votes on the action unless members of the City Council request specific items to be 
discussed for separate review.  Items pulled for separate discussion will be considered 
following General Government.

Note that all Ordinances which appear on the public agenda shall be determined to have 
been read by title and further reading waived.

A. Consider the November 11, 2020, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve minutes.

B. Approval of City Check Registers Dated October 16, October 23, October 30, 
November 6, and November 13 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve check registers.

C. Annual Special Event Update 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive report and direct staff to treat all planned 2020 
General Special Event Permits as recurring events for 2021.



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
November 24, 2020

City of Capitola Page 3 Updated 11/20/2020 2:40 PM

D. Receive Update on the City's Pandemic Response 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Make the determination that all hazards related to the 
worldwide spread of the coronavirus (COVID-19) as detailed in Resolution No. 4168 
adopted by the City Council on March 12, 2020, still exist and that there is a need to 
continue action. 

8. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS

All items listed in “General Government” are intended to provide an opportunity for public 
discussion of each item listed. The following procedure pertains to each General 
Government item:  1) Staff explanation; 2) Council questions; 3) Public comment; 4) Council 
deliberation; 5) Decision.

A. Recreation Division Strategic Plan 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt proposed five-year Recreation Strategic Plan.

B. Village Bollard Project 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt the proposed resolution accepting California 
Governor’s Office of Emergency Services Grant funds for the City’s FY19 State 
Homeland Security Grant Project 005 - Portable Bollard/Security Barriers, and 
amending the FY19-20 budget.

C. Approve the Plans, Specifications, and Engineer's Estimate for the Capitola Avenue 
Sidewalk Improvement Project and Authorize Advertising for Bids 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the plans, specifications, and construction 
estimate for the Capitola Avenue Sidewalk Improvement Project and authorize 
advertising for bids.

9. ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE OF REMOTE ACCESS
In accordance with the current Santa Cruz County Health Order outlining social distancing 
requirements and Executive Order N-29-20 from the Executive Department of the State of 
California, the City Council meeting is not physically open to the public and in person 
attendance cannot be accommodated. 

To watch:
1. Online http://capitolaca.iqm2.com/Citizens/Default.aspx
2. Spectrum Cable Television channel 8
3. Join the Zoom Meeting (below) 

To Join Zoom:
1. https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82085862340?pwd=a0hhNlRMUVdrWTREV2dyMzIvT0NoQT09
2. If prompted for a passcode, enter 432002

3. With a landline or mobile phone, call one of the following numbers:
a. 1 669 900 6833

1 408 638 0968
1 346 248 7799

b. Enter the meeting ID number: 820 8586 2340
c. When prompted for a Participant ID, press #



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
November 24, 2020

City of Capitola Page 4 Updated 11/20/2020 2:40 PM

To submit public comment: 
When submitting public comment, one comment (via phone or email, not both), per person, per 
item is allowed. If you send more than one email about the same item, the last received will be 
read. 

1. Zoom Meeting (Via Computer or Phone) Link:
A. IF USING COMPUTER: 
§ Use participant option to “raise hand” during the public comment period for 

the item you wish to speak on. Once unmuted, you will have up to 3 minutes 
to speak

A. IF CALLED IN OVER THE PHONE: 
§ Press *9 on your phone to “raise your hand” when the mayor calls for public 

comment. Once unmuted, you will have up to 3 minutes to speak
1. Send Email: 

A. During the meeting, send comments via email to publiccomment@ci.capitola.ca.us  
§ Emailed comments on items will be accepted after the start of the meeting 

until the Mayor announces that public comment for that item is closed.
§ Emailed comments should be a maximum of 450 words, which corresponds 

to approximately 3 minutes of speaking time.
§ Each emailed comment will be read aloud for up to three minutes and/or 

displayed on a screen.
§ Emails received by publiccomment@ci.capitola.ca.us outside of the comment 

period outlined above will not be included in the record.

Note: Any person seeking to challenge a City Council decision made as a result of a proceeding in 
which, by law, a hearing is required to be given, evidence is required to be taken, and the discretion in 
the determination of facts is vested in the City Council, shall be required to commence that court action 
within ninety (90) days following the date on which the decision becomes final as provided in Code of 
Civil Procedure §1094.6. Please refer to code of Civil Procedure §1094.6 to determine how to calculate 
when a decision becomes “final.” Please be advised that in most instances the decision become “final” 
upon the City Council’s announcement of its decision at the completion of the public hearing. Failure to 
comply with this 90-day rule will preclude any person from challenging the City Council decision in 
court.

Notice regarding City Council: The City Council meets on the 2nd and 4th Thursday of each month 
at 7:00 p.m. (or in no event earlier than 6:00 p.m.), in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 420 
Capitola Avenue, Capitola.

Agenda and Agenda Packet Materials: The City Council Agenda and the complete Agenda Packet 
are available for review on the City’s website: www.cityofcapitola.org and at Capitola City Hall prior to 
the meeting. Agendas are also available at the Capitola Post Office located at 826 Bay Avenue, 
Capitola. Need more information? Contact the City Clerk’s office at 831-475-7300.

Agenda Materials Distributed after Distribution of the Agenda Packet: Pursuant to Government 
Code §54957.5, materials related to an agenda item submitted after distribution of the agenda packet 
are available for public inspection at the Reception Office at City Hall, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, 
California, during normal business hours.

Americans with Disabilities Act: Disability-related aids or services are available to enable persons 
with a disability to participate in this meeting consistent with the Federal Americans with Disabilities Act 
of 1990. Assisted listening devices are available for individuals with hearing impairments at the meeting 
in the City Council Chambers. Should you require special accommodations to participate in the meeting 
due to a disability, please contact the City Clerk’s office at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting at 
831-475-7300. In an effort to accommodate individuals with environmental sensitivities, attendees are 
requested to refrain from wearing perfumes and other scented products.



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
November 24, 2020

City of Capitola Page 5 Updated 11/20/2020 2:40 PM

Televised Meetings: City Council meetings are cablecast “Live” on Charter Communications Cable TV 
Channel 8 and are recorded to be rebroadcasted at 8:00 a.m. on the Wednesday following the 
meetings and at 1:00 p.m. on Saturday following the first rebroadcast on Community Television of 
Santa Cruz County (Charter Channel 71 and Comcast Channel 25). Meetings are streamed “Live” on 
the City’s website at www.cityofcapitola.org by clicking on the Home Page link “Meeting 
Agendas/Videos.” Archived meetings can be viewed from the website at any time.



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF NOVEMBER 24, 2020

FROM: City Manager Department

SUBJECT: Consider the November 11, 2020, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve minutes.

DISCUSSION: Attached for Council review and approval are the minutes of the regular meeting 
on November 11, 2020. 

ATTACHMENTS:

1. 11-12 draft

Report Prepared By:  Chloe Woodmansee
Interim City Clerk

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

7.A

Packet Pg. 6



 

 

DRAFT CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 12, 2020 - 7 PM 

  CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

  Mayor Petersen called the meeting to order at 5 p.m.  

Council Member Ed Bottorff: Remote, Council Member Jacques Bertrand: Remote, Council Member 
Sam Storey: Remote, Mayor Kristen Petersen: Remote, Vice Mayor Yvette Brooks: Remote. 
 
No members of the public were present, and the Council adjourned with the following items to be 
discussed in Closed Session:   

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - SIGNIFICANT EXPOSURE TO 
LITIGATION  

(Gov’t Code§54956.9(d)(2).) 

 one potential case 
 

LIABILITY CLAIM  

(Govt Code § 54956.95) 

Claimant: Anthony Oster 
Agency claimed against: City of Capitola 

 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL – 7 PM 

 1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Council Member Ed Bottorff: Remote, Council Member Jacques Bertrand: Remote, Council Member 
Sam Storey: Remote, Mayor Kristen Petersen: Remote, Vice Mayor Yvette Brooks: Remote. 

 2. REPORT ON CLOSSED SESSION 
There was no reportable action.  

 3. PRESENTATIONS 

A. Retirement Proclamation for Ben Irao 

 4. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS 

 5. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA 

 6. PUBLIC COMMENTS – none  

 7. CITY COUNCIL / STAFF COMMENTS 

Director Jesberg announced a virtual Rispin Park Project community forum to be held on Monday, 
November 16 at 6 p.m. He also said there is a slight delay to the Jetty project which will begin on 
November 30.   
 
Councilmember Bertrand said that the new Capitola Branch Library project progress looks 
promising.   
 

7.A.1

Packet Pg. 7

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

1-
12

 d
ra

ft
  (

A
p

p
ro

ve
 C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
November 12, 2020 

City of Capitola Page 2 Updated 11/17/2020 1:38 PM 

Vice-Mayor Brooks announced that Second Harvest Food Bank Santa Cruz County is accepting 
donations and looking for food-delivery volunteers.  
 
Mayor Petersen reminded the public that the County has seen a recent spike in COVID-19 cases 
and asked that everyone continue to social distance and wear masks.   

 8. CONSENT CALENDAR 

MOTION: APPROVE, ADOPT, AUTHORIZE, AND RECEIVE ALL ITEMS, EXCLUDING 
8.G, AS RECOMMENDED 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Ed Bottorff, Council Member 

SECONDER: Jacques Bertrand, Council Member 

AYES: Bottorff, Bertrand, Storey, Petersen, Brooks 

A. Consider the October 22, 2020, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve minutes. 

B. Liability Claim of Anthony Oster [Claims Binder] 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Reject liability claim. 

C. Consider the 2021 Meeting Schedule for the City Council/Successor Agency520-40 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt the recommended regular meeting schedule for 
2021. 

D. Loma Vista Regulatory Agreement Amendment 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Acting as the City Council and the Successor Agency, 
authorize the City Manager/Executive Director to sign the Second Amendment to the 
Regulatory Agreement for Loma Vista Estates.   

E. Second Reading Chapter 17 Zoning Code/Local Coastal Plan Adoption 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt the proposed Ordinance, and waive reading of 
the text, amending Title 17 of Capitola Municipal Code.  

F. Consider Update on the Community Development Block Grant - Coronavirus 
Response Grant Application 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt the proposed resolution repealing Resolution 
Nos. 4175 and 4191 and approving an application for funding and commitment of 
program income funds and any amendments thereto from the 2020 funding year of 
the state Community Development Block Grant Coronavirus Response (CDBG-CV).  

G. Holiday Suspension of Village Parking Fees 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Authorize suspending parking meter and pay station 
operation to allow free three-hour parking in the Village Parking Meter Zone A(1) 
from November 26 through December 25, 2020. 

H. Donations Report 2020 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive the donations and contributions report. 

Councilmember Bottorff requested that Item 8.G be pulled from consent for further discussion and 

a separate vote. The item was heard prior to General Government:   

  

7.A.1

Packet Pg. 8

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

1-
12

 d
ra

ft
  (

A
p

p
ro

ve
 C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
November 12, 2020 

City of Capitola Page 3 Updated 11/17/2020 1:38 PM 

 Captain Dally presented a brief staff report.  
 

Rodney Wartzok, BIA Representative, spoke during public comment in favor of the holiday free 
parking program. Margaux Keiser, long term Village employee, noted that people are deterred 
away from Capitola because of parking, and that an incentive would help during the Holidays.   

 
Councilmember Bottorff said that he’s appreciates this program in the past, however, cannot see 
its viability during this year when the City has suffered significant income losses. He explained 
that the City cannot afford the discretionary program, and that in the future when the economic 
situation is improved, he would welcome this program back.  

 

MOTION: DENY RECOMMENDATION AND MAINTAIN PARKING METER AND PAY 
STATION OPERATION AS NORMAL – NO ACTION REQUIRED OF STAFF 

MOVER: Ed Bottorff 

SECONDER: Yvette Brooks  

 
Councilmember Bertrand asked staff if this program makes a difference in visits to Capitola, and if 
the program impacts the permit programs already in place.  

  
Mayor Petersen said that while she agrees with Councilmember Bottorff, she also sees that 
Capitola businesses have suffered due to the pandemic. She asked if a compromise could be 
made.   
 
Vice-Mayor Brooks said that if the City can’t remain vital, supporting businesses will cease to be 
possible. She said that the City’s infrastructure must be the priority.  

 
 Councilmember Bertrand again asked about permit programs and suggested that one be 

developed in the future between the City and the BIA to more directly address this issue.  
 

Mayor Petersen commented that if the parking fees were to remain, she was uncertain what 
would then happen with those saved funds.  

 
Staff confirmed that the next budget update would be on December 10. Councilmember Storey 
suggested that Council revisit this issue at the December 10 meeting, after receiving more 
information on the budget at that time. Councilmember Bertrand agreed and pointed out that a 
study has not shown that this program truly helps businesses.  

 
Councilmember Bottorff said that during budget adoption, Council approved an immediate cut to 
all discretionary spending; this program is discretionary and should also be cut.  
 

ALTERNATE  

MOTION: APPROVE STAFF RECOMMENDATION AND SUSPEND PARKING METER 
AND PAY STATION OPERATION, FOR TWO WEEKS RATHER THAN THE 
TRADITIONAL FOUR  

RESULT FAILS [2 TO 3]  

MOVER: Kristen Petersen 

SECONDER: Jacques Bertrand  

AYES: Bertrand, Petersen 

NOES  Bottorff, Brooks, Storey  

 
 

Councilmember Storey asked if this item could be reconsidered at the December 10 meeting, 
Staff responded that if given direction later, the change could be implemented swiftly.  

7.A.1

Packet Pg. 9

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

1-
12

 d
ra

ft
  (

A
p

p
ro

ve
 C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
November 12, 2020 

City of Capitola Page 4 Updated 11/17/2020 1:38 PM 

 

MOTION: DENY RECOMMENDATION AND MAINTAIN PARKING METER AND PAY 
STATION OPERATION AS NORMAL – NO ACTION REQUIRED OF STAFF 

RESULT: PASSES [3 TO 2] 

MOVER: Ed Bottorff 

SECONDER: Yvette Brooks  

AYES: Bottorff, Brooks, Storey 

NOES: Bertrand, Petersen 

 9. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. Santa Cruz County Presentation of Draft Action Plan Addressing Homelessness 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive presentation from County of Santa Cruz staff 
on their draft action plan, Housing for a Healthy Santa Cruz: A Strategic Framework 
for Addressing Homelessness in Santa Cruz County, and consider providing 
feedback.  

 
Elissa Benson, Assistant County Administrative Officer with the County of Santa Cruz, presented 
Housing for a Healthy Santa Cruz, a three-year framework to address homelessness. 
 
Randy Morris, Director of Human Services Department for Santa Cruz County, said that the 
framework will be ready for official City Council adoption in January 2021.   
 
Councilmember Bertrand asked a question about goal metrics and how they were set, Ms. 
Benson responded that predictive modeling and quantitative analysis was used to do so.  
 
Councilmember Storey asked about the strategy to increase housing stock appreciated the 
presentation and was told that government subsidizing of projects, , lobbying for State money, 
and waivers are all approaches.  
 
Vice-Mayor Brooks asked if there was a specific plan the Housing for a Health Santa Cruz was 
modeled after; Ms. Benson responded that several best practices were consulted.   
 
Councilmember Bottorff thanked the presenters for their enthusiasm and commented that he 
would no longer being a member of Council in January when adoption is anticipated.  
 
Councilmember Bertrand added that the individual face of homelessness should not be forgotten 
when devising big-picture plans.  

 

RESULT: RECEIVED REPORT 

B. Receive Update on the City's Pandemic Response 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Make the determination that all hazards related to the 
worldwide spread of the coronavirus (COVID-19) as detailed in Resolution No. 4168 
adopted by the City Council on March 12, 2020, still exist and that there is a need to 
continue action.  

 
City Manager Goldstein presented a brief staff report.  
 
Councilmember Storey asked about the Historical Museum’s status; staff confirmed that there are 
no plans to reopen at this time, though the Museum Curator continues to prepare to do so when 
safe.  

7.A.1

Packet Pg. 10

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

1-
12

 d
ra

ft
  (

A
p

p
ro

ve
 C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
November 12, 2020 

City of Capitola Page 5 Updated 11/17/2020 1:38 PM 

 
Vice-Mayor Brooks asked if the Out-of-School program will be affected by the County’s tier 
change. Recreation Supervisor explained that the program was designed to fully operate in the 
Purple Tier. The Vice-Mayor asked if the program could be opened to serve students from other 
school districts and was told that due to a lack of staffing this is likely not possible.  
 
There was no public comment.  
 

MOTION: MAKE DETERMINATION THAT HAZARDS STILL EXIST 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Sam Storey 

SECONDER: Ed Bottorff 

AYES: Bottorff, Bertrand, Storey, Petersen, Brooks 

C. Consider a Resolution Establishing Holidays and City Hall Closures for 2021630-10 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt the proposed resolution designating the holidays 
and closures for 2021.  

 
Clerk Woodmansee presented the holiday schedule.  

 
Councilmember Storey asked that Columbus Day be changed in name to Indigenous People's 
Day.  
 
Councilmember Bottorff said in past years this had been discussed and explained his view that 
City Council’s should avoid voting on National issues.  
 
Councilmember Bertrand said that it is important to honor Indigenous People, especially as their 
culture is being turned to for guidance on current issues such as forest management.  
 
There was no public comment.  
 

MOTION: ADOPT PROPOSED RESOLUTION WITH NOVEMBER 11 HOLIDAY 
NAME CHANGED TO INDIGENOUS PEOPLE’S DAY  

RESULT: ADOPTED [4 TO 1] 

MOVER: Sam Storey 

SECONDER: Yvette Brooks 

AYES: Jacques Bertrand, Sam Storey, Kristen Petersen, Yvette Brooks 

NAYS: Ed Bottorff 

 10. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was closed at 9:15 PM.  
  

   _____________________ 
    Kristen Petersen, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________ 
Chloé Woodmansee, City Clerk 

7.A.1

Packet Pg. 11

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

1-
12

 d
ra

ft
  (

A
p

p
ro

ve
 C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF NOVEMBER 24, 2020

FROM: Finance Department

SUBJECT: Approval of City Check Registers Dated October 16, October 23, October 30, 
November 6, and November 13

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve check registers.

Account: City Main

Date Starting Check # Ending Check #
Payment 

Count
Amount

10/16/2020 96655 96690 42 $     122,725.60

10/23/2020 96691 96756 66 $     166,096.72

10/30/2020 96757 96797 49 $     144,451.20

11/6/2020 96798 96861 67 $     219,693.40

11/13/2020 96862 96898 43 $   132,948.67

The main account check register dated October 9, 2020, ended with check #96654.

Account: Library

Date
Starting 

Check/EFT #
Ending 

Check/EFT #
Payment 

Count
Amount

11/13/2020 227 227 1 $        2,940.00

The library account check register dated October 9, 2020, ended with check #226.

Account: Payroll

Date
Starting 

Check/EFT #
Ending 

Check/EFT #
Payment 

Count
Amount

10/23/2020 15605 15698 96 $     154,716.82

10/30/2020 5687 5687 1 $      11,381.27

11/6/2020 15699 15796 99 $     156,839.04
The payroll account check register dated October 9, 2020, ended with EFT #15604. 

Following is a list of payments issued for more than $10,000 and descriptions of the expenditures:

Check/
EFT

Issued to Dept Description Amount

EFT 
1021

CalPERS Member 
Services

FN
PERS contributions PPE 

10/3/20
$   49,763.98

7.B

Packet Pg. 12



Approval of City Check Registers 
November 24, 2020

EFT 
1023

Internal Revenue Service FN
Federal taxes & Medicare PPE 

10/3/20
$   23,881.38

96707
Earthworks Paving 

Contractors
PW

Park Ave. bike path 
reconstruction retention 

release
$   26,516.00

96716 Kimley Horn & Associates PW
1360 41st Ave. parking study, 
Capitola Ave. sidewalk final 

plans
$   15,203.42

96724 Pacific Gas & Electric PW October gas & electricity $   14,738.81

96730
Santa Cruz County 
Auditor-Controller

PD September citation processing $   11,381.50

96746 Visit Santa Cruz County FN
July – Sept. tourism marketing 

district
$   47,769.47

96760 Albion Environmental Inc. CD
322 Capitola Ave. 

archaeological report
$   13,300.29

EFT 
1026

CalPERS Member 
Services

FN
PERS contributions PPE 

10/17/20
$   49,484.20

EFT 
1028

Internal Revenue Service FN
Federal taxes & Medicare PPE 

10/17/20
$   24,267.40

96804
Burke Williams and 

Sorensen
CM September legal services $   14,356.00

96809 Dell Marketing LP CM Office 365 software licenses $   15,636.00

96810 Eide Bailly LLP FN FY19/20 audit services $   15,000.00

96811
Employment Development 

Dept.
CM

July – Sept. unemployment 
insurance

$   14,171.00

96819 Motorola Solutions Inc. PD
Radios, chargers, remote 

speaker microphones
$   65,671.75

EFT 
1034

CalPERS Health CM November health insurance $   54,318.58

EFT 
1035

CalPERS Member 
Services

FN
PERS contributions PPE 

10/31/20
$   49,620.81

EFT 
1037

Internal Revenue Service FN
Federal taxes & Medicare PPE 

10/31/20
$  24,128.88

ATTACHMENTS:

1. 10-16-20 Check Register
2. 10-23-20 Check Register
3. 10-30-20 Check Register
4. 11-6-20 Check Register
5. 11-13-20 Check Register

Report Prepared By:  Mark Sullivan
Senior Accountant

7.B

Packet Pg. 13



Approval of City Check Registers 
November 24, 2020

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

7.B

Packet Pg. 14



7.B.1

Packet Pg. 15

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

0-
16

-2
0 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.1

Packet Pg. 16

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

0-
16

-2
0 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.1

Packet Pg. 17

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

0-
16

-2
0 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.1

Packet Pg. 18

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

0-
16

-2
0 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.1

Packet Pg. 19

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

0-
16

-2
0 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.1

Packet Pg. 20

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

0-
16

-2
0 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.2

Packet Pg. 21

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

0-
23

-2
0 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.2

Packet Pg. 22

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

0-
23

-2
0 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.2

Packet Pg. 23

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

0-
23

-2
0 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.2

Packet Pg. 24

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

0-
23

-2
0 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.2

Packet Pg. 25

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

0-
23

-2
0 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.2

Packet Pg. 26

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

0-
23

-2
0 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.2

Packet Pg. 27

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

0-
23

-2
0 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.3

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

0-
30

-2
0 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.3

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

0-
30

-2
0 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.3

Packet Pg. 30

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

0-
30

-2
0 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.3

Packet Pg. 31

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

0-
30

-2
0 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.3

Packet Pg. 32

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

0-
30

-2
0 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.3

Packet Pg. 33

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

0-
30

-2
0 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.4

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

1-
6-

20
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.4

Packet Pg. 35

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

1-
6-

20
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.4

Packet Pg. 36

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

1-
6-

20
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.4

Packet Pg. 37

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

1-
6-

20
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.4

Packet Pg. 38

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

1-
6-

20
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.4

Packet Pg. 39

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

1-
6-

20
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.4

Packet Pg. 40

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

1-
6-

20
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.4

Packet Pg. 41

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

1-
6-

20
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.5

Packet Pg. 42

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

1-
13

-2
0 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.5

Packet Pg. 43

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

1-
13

-2
0 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.5

Packet Pg. 44

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

1-
13

-2
0 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.5

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

1-
13

-2
0 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.5

Packet Pg. 46

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

1-
13

-2
0 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.5

Packet Pg. 47

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

1-
13

-2
0 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF NOVEMBER 24, 2020

FROM: Capitola Police Department

SUBJECT: Annual Special Event Update

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive report and direct staff to treat all planned 2020 General 
Special Event Permits as recurring events for 2021.

BACKGROUND: In February 2002, the City Council approved Resolution No. 3202, adopting a 
special event permit program and fee schedule. The purpose of the program was to provide 
regulations and guidelines for special events occurring within City limits and to recover costs 
associated with those events.

Special events are divided into two categories: general and minor special events. General 
special events are those with more than 200 attendees or notable impacts to City services or a 
neighborhood. Minor special events are activities with less than 200 attendees and limited 
impacts. Minor special events can be approved by the City Manager, while applications for any 
new general special event must be presented to Council for consideration. 

Special events that were held the prior year (recurring special events), may be approved by the 
City Manager for the upcoming calendar year if no significant modifications are proposed, and 
no major event problems occurred in recent prior years. Council has the discretion to request a 
review of a recurring special event if there is an identifiable concern related to past events.  

In typical years, Staff prepares a review of the year’s special events to identify any issues and 
determine if additional review should be required for any recurring events; if no issues are 
identified and the event organizer proposes no significant changes, staff will issue permits for 
those recurring special events in the coming year.

DISCUSSION: This year’s special events were significantly impacted due to the COVID-19
pandemic. In 2020, staff issued one general event permit for the Surfer’s Path 10k/5k race on 
February 23, 2020, and two minor special event permits. Both minor events fell on February 2, 
2020: Veteran Surf Alliance BBQ and the Capitola/Soquel Chamber Village Sip and Stroll. 

With the exemption of the two special events that occurred in February, all events for the entire 
year were cancelled by event organizers without staff involvement, due to the pandemic. The 
Woman on Waves (WOW) event would have been a new (returning) event in 2020; however, it 
was also canceled by the event organizer due to the pandemic. 

Since nearly all events were cancelled in 2020, in 2021 technically all events would be “new” 

7.C

Packet Pg. 48



Annual Special Event Update 
November 24, 2020

and not recurring.  Staff is requesting authorization to treat all the originally planned 2020 events 
as recurring events for 2021.  Specifically, the following events would be eligible to receive 
Special Event permits issued by the City Manager.

Planned 2021 General Special Events:

• February Surfer’s Path 10K/5K • Art and Wine Festival

• May Surfer’s Path Marathon • Capitola Beach Festival 

• AIDS Lifecycle • Mermaid Triathlon/Duathlon

• Capitola Custom Classic Car Show • Women On Waves Contest

• Wharf to Wharf Race • October Surfer’s Path Hang 10/Hang 5

• Monte Fireworks Extravaganza

Planned 2021 Minor Events:

• Village Sip and Stroll #1 • Coast Classic Ride

• Operation Surf • Ohana Bicycle Ride

• Village Easter Egg Hunt • Halloween Parade

• Skate-Tola

• Village Sip and Stroll #2

• Surfing Santa

• Village Sip and Stroll #3

• Walk for Angelman’s Syndrome

• Food Truck Event at Monterey Park 

• Art/Music at the Beach (Qty 6)

• Twilight Concerts (Qty 13)

• Opera at the Beach • Movies at the Beach (Qty 4)

FISCAL IMPACT: City costs associated with special events are reimbursed by event organizers.  
Special events generally have a positive impact on the local economy.

Report Prepared By:  Terry McManus
Police Chief

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

7.C

Packet Pg. 49



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF NOVEMBER 24, 2020

FROM: City Manager Department

SUBJECT: Receive Update on the City's Pandemic Response

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Make the determination that all hazards related to the worldwide 
spread of the coronavirus (COVID-19) as detailed in Resolution No. 4168 adopted by the City 
Council on March 12, 2020, still exist and that there is a need to continue action. 

BACKGROUND: In December 2019, an outbreak of a respiratory illness linked to the novel 
coronavirus (COVID-19) was first identified. In March 2020, the state of California, the County of 
Santa Cruz, and the City of Capitola each declared a state of emergency due to the virus. 

Since March, State and local health officers have issued health orders to stop the spread of 
COVID-19; in Santa Cruz County this included March, April, and May Shelter-In-Place orders 
that were more restrictive that statewide guidance. Since then, the County Health Officer has 
incorporated all Orders of the State Public Health Officer, which set baseline statewide 
restrictions on travel and non-residential business activities. 

On August 28, 2020, the State Monitoring List was replaced by the Blueprint for a Safer 
Economy. In this new system, every county in California is assigned to a tier based on its rate of 
new cases and positivity. The tiers are: Purple: Widespread; Red: Substantial; Orange:
Moderate; Yellow: Minimal.

At the start of this new system on August 31, Santa Cruz County was placed in the Purple:
Widespread tier. The County moved into the Red: Substantial tier on September 8. The County 
remained in the Red tier for seven weeks. On October 27, Santa Cruz County moved to the 
Orange: Moderate tier. On November 10, Santa Cruz County returned to the Red: Substantial 
tier. 

On November 16, Santa Cruz County returned to the Purple: Widespread tier; when Governor 
Newsom announced that due to a significant rise in cases statewide, 41 of California’s 58 
counties would be placed in that most restrictive tier.  

On November 17, the COVID-19 case number within Santa Cruz County was 3,530; on 
November 18 the case number had risen to 3,628. As of November 20, data shows there are 
3,819 cases of COVID-19 in Santa Cruz County; 89 of which are in the City of Capitola. There 
have been 27 deaths due to COVID-19.

In Santa Cruz County, the rate of new cases per day per 100k is at 12.8, with an adjusted case 
rate for tier assignment of 11%. There is an overall positivity rate of 3.9%; however, the 
County’s health equity quartile positivity rate is 4.7%. This metric is based on the California 

7.D

Packet Pg. 50



COVID-19 Emergency- Update 15 
November 24, 2020

Healthy Places Index (HPI), a composite measure of socioeconomic opportunity applied to 
census tracts that includes indicators across economic, social, education, transportation, 
housing, environmental, and neighborhood sectors. Each County’s census tracts are divided 
into quartiles based on HPI; for example, the State’s health equity quartile HPI census tracts are 
home to 24% of Californians, they account for 40% of all COVID-19 cases.

DISCUSSION: Due to the City, County, and State’s emergency declarations, City departments 
continue to implement strategies to protect the community and employees while maintaining
essential levels of service to the public. 

As the County’s Health Services Agency warned, it seems the local rise in cases and 
subsequent backwards tier movement was due in some part to Halloween gatherings. With the 
upcoming Thanksgiving holiday, the Health Officer asks community members to stay home and 
not to gather with non-household members. 

On Monday, November 16, the State of California announced that effective Tuesday, November 
17, nearly the entire state would be moved back to the Purple: Widespread tier. Santa Cruz 
County is now in that Purple tier along with 40 others, including the bordering Monterey and 
Santa Clara counties. San Mateo County remains in the Red: Substantial tier. 

The Purple: Widespread tier is the most restrictive and closes all indoor activity for places of 
worship, restaurants, gyms, movie theaters, and wineries. Bars must close all operations, and 
retail establishments may only open at 25% of their indoor capacity. Schools that have not 
already opened for in-person classes are not permitted to in this tier assignment. 

California, Oregon, and Washington State governors issued travel advisories on November 13, 
urging visitors entering their states to self-quarantine to slow the spread of COVID-19. The 
advisories ask Californians to avoid all non-essential statewide travel and to instead stay local. 

On November 16, California Department of Public Health (CDPH) released expanded mask 
guidance, superseding the guidance released on June 18. The updated guidance mandates that 
a face covering is always required when outside of the home, with some limited exceptions. 
Individuals exempt from wearing a face mask include the following: persons outdoors more than 
6-feet away from others, and persons who are actively eating or drinking while still maintaining a 
6-feet distance from non-household members. This guidance directs residents of the entire state 
of California; Santa Cruz County remains under the additional Order to Wear Face Coverings 
issued by the Health Officer on June 25.  

On November 20, the Center for Disease Control (CDC) issued guidance against travelling for 
the Thanksgiving holiday. The CDC has emphasized that gathering with those not within your 
direct household is the most common way to both get and spread the virus.

Also, on November 20, Governor Newsom and the California Department of Public Health 
announced a limited Stay at Home Order requiring that all non-essential work, travel, and 
gatherings stop between 10 PM and 5 AM in all counties within the Purple Tier. The order takes 
effect 10 PM on November 21 and remains until 5 AM December 21. The Order is designed to 
reduce opportunities for disease transmission, as activities conducted from 10 PM to 5 AM are 
generally non-essential by nature and reducing the movement a mixing of individuals is key in 
decreasing the spread of COVID-19. As Santa Cruz County is within the Purple Tier, this 
modified curfew will be in effect locally beginning Saturday, November 21. 

If significant changes occur within Santa Cruz County between the date of agenda publication 

7.D

Packet Pg. 51



COVID-19 Emergency- Update 15 
November 24, 2020

and the City Council meeting, further updates on the regional and local coronavirus response
can be provided in a verbal report at the meeting. 

FISCAL IMPACT: As previously stated, reductions in Sales Tax and Transient Occupancy Tax 
as a result of this health crisis is substantial. In our current fiscal year, staff projects an 
approximate $1.5 million shortfall and has cut nearly $4.5 million from the annual budget. 

Report Prepared By:  Chloe Woodmansee
Interim City Clerk

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

7.D

Packet Pg. 52



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF NOVEMBER 24, 2020

FROM: Capitola Recreation

SUBJECT: Recreation Division Strategic Plan

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt proposed five-year Recreation Strategic Plan.

BACKGROUND: The Recreation Division has used a consistent service model for many years. 
With the introduction of new management in the Division, the City sought to engage the 
community and develop a strategic plan to ensure the City’s recreation offerings best serve the 
community’s needs. 

In February 2019, City Council approved $13,700 to support a Recreation Strategic Plan 
project. A Request for Qualification was issued, and BluePoint Planning chosen as the project’s 
consultant. Staff assembled a core team of both community stakeholders and City staff. This 
team provided a review of existing conditions, identified recreation needs and gaps, and 
developed a vision and plan goals, facilitated by BluePoint Planning. Staff and the core team 
also engaged with the public by holding a community meeting and using an online survey to 
solicit feedback. 

Staff presented the in-progress Plan to Council in February of 2020 and was directed to present 
the collect feedback from the Arts & Cultural Commission. Staff was scheduled to present to 
Arts & Cultural Commission in April 2020; however, due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the 
presentation was delayed until November 2020.  

DISCUSSION: Using the information gathered through community outreach and the 
presentation to the Art & Cultural Commission, BluePoint Planning and the Core Team 
developed a Strategic Plan Framework (Attachment 1) and full Plan (Attachment 2). The 
proposed framework provides a new Mission, Vision, and Values for the Recreation Division 
and outlines four goals, each with guiding strategies, that the Division would use for workplan 
and budget development starting in fiscal year 2020/21. 

The proposed strategic Plan goals are:

1. Efficient & Effective Division: By 2022, transform the Division into an umbrella 
organization for programming parks, events, and recreation that is resourced, efficient, 
and effective.

2. Affordable & Accessible: Annually update and refine recreation programs and event 
offerings to ensure they are balanced, relevant, affordable, and accessible to all 
community members, regardless of age, socio-economic status, or ability.

8.A

Packet Pg. 53



Recreation Strategic Plan 
November 24, 2020

3. Maximize Facilities: By 2022, complete an assessment of all City facilities and prioritize 
renovations, additions, and ongoing maintenance to maximize their function and 
flexibility to support the Division’s mission.

4. Partnerships: In 2020, establish partnership agreements with the school district, library, 
and other city organizations to secure use of facilities and shared use to expand ability to 
provide a range of services.

The proposed Plan calls for increased collaboration; both with outside partners such as Soquel 
Union Elementary School District and Capitola Library, and within City staff and departments to 
leverage expertise and improve efficiency. As part of a five-year plan, the Recreation Division 
will conduct regular achievement analysis and goal evaluation through its lifetime. 

FISCAL IMPACT: No immediate fiscal impact. 

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Capitola Strategic Plan_FinalF
2. Strategic Framework_FINAL DRAFT

Report Prepared By:  Nikki Bryant Bryant LeBlond
Recreation Supervisor

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

8.A

Packet Pg. 54



Capitola Recreation 
Strategic Plan
February 13, 2020

Prepared by:
BluePoint Planning
1950 Mountain Blvd, #3
Oakland, CA 94611

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 55

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

_F
in

al
F

  (
R

ec
re

at
io

n
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)



8.A.1

Packet Pg. 56

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

_F
in

al
F

  (
R

ec
re

at
io

n
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)



The Strategic Plan
In 2019, the City of Capitola identified the need and opportunity to develop a strategic plan for the Capitola 
Recreation Division to direct future growth and to explore ways to expand recreation services to the 
community. This Strategic Plan was developed in collaboration with Division staff, a representative advisory 
group - “Core Team”, a community survey, and consultant assistance. The Strategic Plan was designed to do 
the following:

• Create a 5-year roadmap for the Recreation Division to meet community needs

• Establish strategies to maximize the use and function of the parks and facilities

• Identify which programs the Division should grow or add

• Create connections and efficiencies with other City community services

• Communicate the Division’s priorities to the community

About Capitola Recreation District 
The Recreation District serves the residents within the City of Capitola and the Soquel Unified Elementary 
School District, a population of approximately 25,000 people. The Recreation Division currently offers a 
robust Class program operating out of the Jade St Community Center and other sites around Capitola and 
the County. We provide Junior Guard and Camp Capitola summer programs for youth, field rentals, and 
coed softball. These programs have been the foundation of Capitola’s recreation division. 

Process
The Strategic Plan was developed over a six-month period and included four meetings with the Core Team, a 
diverse group of community representatives, a community survey, and a workshop. Below is a graphic of the 
process. The next step is to develop the specifics of how and when to enact the Strategic Plan.

• Establish Core 
Advisory Team

• Gather information 
& data

• Review Division 
program schedules

August

October

• Division Mission & 
Project Goals

• Needs & interests

• Launch Community 
Survey

• Review Existing 
Conditions

• Vision & Goals

• Initial Needs & Gaps

• Community Meeting

November

December

• Opportunities & 
Recommendations

• Strategies

• Community Survey 
Findings

• Draft Strategic Plan

• City Council 
Presentation

• Final Strategic Plan 

January/February

Core Team #1 Core Team #2 Core Team #3 Core Team #4

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 57

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

_F
in

al
F

  (
R

ec
re

at
io

n
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)



S.W.O.T. Analysis

Internal Division  
Strengths & Weaknesses

External  
Opportunities & Threats

An important part of the Strategic Planning process was to assess Strengths, Weaknesses, Threats and 
Opportunities (SWOT) of the Division. The staff as well as the Core Team helped to identify and uncover 
the most critical issues that needed to be considered in the Strategic Plan. The follow is a summary of 
those findings. 

Strengths

ThreatsWeaknesses

Opportunities
• Junior guards program!
• Instructor model that enables lots of new 

adult classes and programs
• Affordable and fun summer camp
• New afterschool program!
• Willingness to explore new ideas and 

options
• Community center is used as efficiently as 

possible
• Good relationship with the School District

• Potential to add more youth opportunities,  
holiday camps, and cooking classes

• Expand Food Truck and similar events
• Build awareness of the programs and 

Recreation Division
• Expand access with an updated fee 

structure and subsidy program
• Partnerships with School and Library
• Putting parks, events and recreation 

programming in one Division
• Potential new development

• The community has a lack of awareness 
of the Recreation Division and its 
programs

• Kids are “aging” out of the programs 
and there are not enough programs for 
teens and millennials

• The Division is not recession proof and 
long-term economic sustainability

• Ensuring affordability and access for all 
families and District residents.

• The community center needs to be 
upgraded and its dividing walls aren’t 
soundproof

• There are limited programs for youth, 
particularly non-competitive ones

• The website is not as accessibility or 
usable as needed

• Fee structure and lack of scholarship 
program

• Parks and large events are separate from 
recreation

• Division organization is not optimized for 
best results and operation

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 58

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

_F
in

al
F

  (
R

ec
re

at
io

n
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)



Trends

Technology
Technology and digital access is 
everywhere. Parks and recreation can use 
technology and create places of respite 
from being always on.

>> Creating a more intuitive website 
to provide greater access to programs 
and activities is a big opportunity as is a 
future digital tools to find parks, activities, 
rent facilities, or share information about 
events. 

Build community
Recreation sponsored events and 
programs help to build a sense of 
community and lasting connections to 
fellow residents.

>> Optimizing the park space, and 
increasing the number of events, will all 
serve to bringing greater awareness to the 
Division activities and enhancing the sense 
of community.

Nature & Environment
Access to and appreciation of the 
natural world and the importance of the 
environment are strong trends that can be 
amplified by programs and parks.

>> By bringing parks into the Recreation 
Division, it offers the potential for classes 
related to wildlife viewing, environmental 
education classes, and creation of 
amenities such as community gardens.

Intergenerational
Programs and activities that encourage 
multi-generational activities are growing in 
popularity and supporting deeper learning 
by sharing experiences across age groups.

>> For Capitola this may mean programs 
at the library pairing high schoolers with 
older residents to help with computers, or 
community events welcoming to all ages.

Health & Wellness
Access to parks and recreation directly 
help improve a community’s health and 
wellness, combating obesity, heart disease, 
mental illness, and much more. 

>> For Capitola this means integrating 
opportunities for exercise in classes, in the 
parks, for all ages and abilities. It also could 
mean health related classes, or wellness 
camps.

Art & Culture
Parks and recreation department are 
integrating arts and culture into their 
programming and parks, expanding 
participation for all ages.

>> By consolidating Events into 
the Recreation Division, there is the 
opportunity to connect the Arts and 
Culture Commission to the community 
recreation community, enhancing both.

The Strategic Planning process included considering major local, regional,and national trends that the Plan 
should address in establishing a vision and goals. The following are the highlights of those trends

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 59

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

_F
in

al
F

  (
R

ec
re

at
io

n
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)



Currently, the Capitola Recreation District primarily develops and operates programs at the Capitola 
Recreation Center at Jade Park. In addition, the District manages the rental of fields for sports, summer camps, 
and the Junior Lifeguard program. Recently, they have started an afterschool program in partnership with the 
Soquel Elementary School District at the New Brighton Middle School.

Their programs include activities for adults and youth, as well as community events. Programs include 
youth and adult dance classes, a wide range of arts and crafts, music classes, adult wellness classes such as 
meditation, pilates and yoga, youth sports including skateboarding, and tennis. Community events include 
movies in the community center, clothing exchanges, and food  truck nights.

District Population Characteristics
The District includes the City of Capitola and extends to the Soquel Elementary School District. Over 60% of 
the District’s population is within the ages of 25 to 64, with about 22% under the age of 19. The average annual 
median income of the District is $68,000, with the City of Capitola’s being substantially lower. The median age 
is 42, with an average household size of 2.43. As with many communities, the District is getting older, with 
fewer younger people. There are plans in the city for new housing, which will add population and likely attract 
some younger families.

Who uses the Programs now?
The Districts offers approximately 500 classes annually. The majority of participants are female over the age 
of 55.  During the summer, the Division serves a larger number of youth, particularly with the Junior Guards 
and summer camp program. There is an opportunity for the District to broaden its appeal and increase the 
diversity of people who participate. 

Program Statistics

District Recreation Programs
8.A.1

Packet Pg. 60

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

_F
in

al
F

  (
R

ec
re

at
io

n
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)



District Parks and Other Providers

Capitola District or City Facility

County or other Government Provider

School District Facility

Commercial Fitness Provider

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 61

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

_F
in

al
F

  (
R

ec
re

at
io

n
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)



8.A.1

Packet Pg. 62

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

_F
in

al
F

  (
R

ec
re

at
io

n
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)



Capitola Recreation & Park Division
       Strategic Plan Framework

The Capitola Recreation & Parks Division is committed to providing safe, affordable, intergen-
erational, and fun recreational activities and facilities to support the health and well-being of 
people of all backgrounds and ability levels.

We provide recreation programs and facilities that are progressive, evolve, and are responsive 
to the needs of the entire community.

Community- 
Oriented  
Respond and 
anticipate 
community needs, 
informing and 
shaping programs 
for all.

Collaborative

Work hand and 
hand with city and 
regional partners 
to provide the best 
services possible.

Innovative 

Strive to 
incorporate 
innovative thinking 
in all aspects of the 
operation of the 
division.

Efficient

Use resources, 
facilities, and staff 
efficiently to get 
the greatest benefit 
possible.

Affordable

Provide a range of 
opportunities for all 
residents that are 
affordable and fully 
accessible. 

Our Mission

Our Vision

Our Values

Goal 1: Efficient & Effective Division
By 2022, transform the division into an umbrella organization for programming parks, events, and 
recreation that is resourced, efficient, and effective.

Goal 2: Affordable & Accessible
Annually update and refine recreation programs and event offerings to ensure they are balanced, 
relevant, affordable, and accessible to all community members, regardless of age, socio-economic status, 
or ability.

Goal 3. Maximize Facilities
By 2022, complete an assessment of all city recreation and park facilities and prioritize renovations, 
additions, and ongoing maintenance to maximize function and flexibility to support the Division’s mission. 

Goal 4. Partnerships
In 2020, establish partnership agreements with the school district, library and other city organizations to 
secure use of facilities and shared use to expand ability to provide a range of services.

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 63

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

_F
in

al
F

  (
R

ec
re

at
io

n
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)



8.A.1

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

_F
in

al
F

  (
R

ec
re

at
io

n
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)



Key Initiatives
Add Park to the Recreation Division
Currently Capitola Parks are housed under 
Public Works. The Strategic Plan has identified 
moving Parks in to the Recreation Division 
as a key initiative to help better serve District 
residents. The proposal would ensure that 
parks are continued to be maintained by Public 
Works, with the Recreation Division overseeing 
their management in support of programs, 
programming, and in collaboration with Public 
Works identifying future enhancements to 
improve function and use. This change would 
increase the activation, use, and function of the 
parks. 

Integrate Events Staff into the 
Recreation Division
Major events in Capitola are primarily managed 
by a single staff person within the Arts and 
Culture Commission that is separate from the 
Recreation Division. This move would help to 
improve coordination and align with other City 
events operated out of Recreation. Further, 
uniting these efforts in one Division will allow 
for better communications to the community 
and awareness of the events. 

Streamline Recreation Division 
Organization
The Recreation Division has not had a 
comprehensive update of staffing titles, 
positions, and structure for a long time. The 
result has been a reduction in efficiencies 
and lack of ability to operate effectively. The 
addition of Events and Parks, and the plan for 
future growth offers the right time to reassess 
the structure and to develop one more in line 
with a modern recreation department.

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 65

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

_F
in

al
F

  (
R

ec
re

at
io

n
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)



Goal 1: Efficient & Effective Division 
By 2022, transform the division into an umbrella organization for 
programming parks, events, and recreation that is resourced, 
efficient, and effective.

Goal 1. Strategies

S.1.1 Plan for the operational needs of City organized events and assure they
are appropriately resourced by incorporating into the Division in coordination
with the Art & Cultural Commission as appropriate.

S.1.2 Develop a process for Recreation to incorporate programming and
enhance community participation in Parks in coordination with the Public
Works Department.

S.1.3 Evaluate Division’s role in the issuance of Special Event Permits in
coordination with the Police Department.

S.1.4 Build a new Division organization, including incorporating the addition of
Events and Parks, clearer job titles, and resources to support activities.

S.1.5 Establish budgetary parameters for a new department structure and
needs for fundraising, grants, and general fund allocations.

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

_F
in

al
F

  (
R

ec
re

at
io

n
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)



Goal 2: Affordable & Accessible
Annually update and refine recreation programs and event offerings 
to ensure they are balanced, relevant, affordable, and accessible to 
all community members, regardless of age, socio-economic status,  
or ability.

Goal 2. Strategies

S.2.1 Establish a cost recovery policy that enables more affordable access to
programs for all residents of all ages with reasonable fees, scholarships, and
revenue generation targets.

S.2.2 Explore need and roles of a Committee Advisory Group to provide input
and feedback on new programs and activities and to support relevant and
valuable services.

S.2.3 Expand and develop relationships with educational organizations outside
of the City to promote internships and increase availability of teen programs.

S.2.4 Optimize the use of parks, facilities, and partner locations to pilot and
offer programs throughout the City.

S.2.5 Systematically evaluate and update programs and program offerings to
ensure that they serve the community as a whole.

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 67

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

_F
in

al
F

  (
R

ec
re

at
io

n
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)



Goal 3. Maximize Facilities
By 2022, complete an assessment of all city recreation and park 
facilities and prioritize renovations, additions, and ongoing 
maintenance to maximize function and flexibility to support the 
Division’s mission.

Goal 3. Strategies

S.3.1. Inventory existing City Recreation and Parks and Facilities, survey the
community and conduct a Needs Assessment.

S.3.2 Prioritize facility upgrades to support program offerings, improve
efficiencies, and broaden services to the community.

S.3. Identify and help develop additional park facilities and recreation programs
associated with new developments or other available resources.

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 68

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

_F
in

al
F

  (
R

ec
re

at
io

n
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)



Goal 4. Partnerships
In 2020, establish partnership agreements with the school district, 
library and other public organizations to secure use of facilities and 
shared use to expand ability to provide a range of services.

Goal 4. Strategies

S.4.1 Cooperate with School District to establish a long-term memorandum of
understanding (MOU) regarding the shared use and programming of City and
District facilities.

S.4.2 Establish a MOU with the library for programming and use of facilities at
the new Capitola Library.

S.4.3 Foster relationships with other public and private recreation, event, and
park providers to coordinate and amplify opportunities to serve residents.

S.4.4 Pursue grants and other funding with partners, building on the benefits of
shared resources and cooperative services.

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 69

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

_F
in

al
F

  (
R

ec
re

at
io

n
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)



8.A.1

Packet Pg. 70

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

_F
in

al
F

  (
R

ec
re

at
io

n
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)



 
 
 
 
 

 

  January 30, 2020 

Capitola Recreation & Parks Division 
Strategic Plan Framework 
 

Mission 
The Capitola Recreation & Parks Division is committed to providing safe, affordable, 
intergenerational, and fun recreational activities and facilities to support the health and well-
being of people of all backgrounds and ability levels. 
 

Vision 
We provide recreation programs and facilities that are progressive, evolve, and are responsive 
to the needs of the entire community. 
 

Values 
• Community-Oriented – Respond and anticipate community needs, informing, and shaping 

programs for all. 
• Collaborative – Work hand and hand with city and regional partners to provide the best services 

possible. 
• Innovative – Strive to incorporate innovative thinking in all aspects of the operation of the 

division. 
• Efficient – Use resources, facilities, and staff efficiently to get the greatest benefit possible. 
• Affordable – Provide a range of opportunities for all residents that are affordable and fully 

accessible.  

  

8.A.2

Packet Pg. 71

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 F
ra

m
ew

o
rk

_F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T
  (

R
ec

re
at

io
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

)



 
 
 
 
 

 

  January 30, 2020 

Goals 
1. Efficient & Effective Division: By 2022, transform the division into an umbrella organization for 
programming parks, events, and recreation that is resourced, efficient, and effective. 
 
S.1.1 Plan for the operational needs of City organized events and assure they are appropriately 
resourced by incorporating into the Division in coordination with the Art & Cultural Commission as 
appropriate. 
 
S.1.2 Develop a process for Recreation to incorporate programming and enhance community 
participation in Parks in coordination with the Public Works Department. 
 
S.1.3 Evaluate Division’s role in the issuance of Special Event Permits in coordination with the Police 
Department.  
 
S.1.4 Build a new Division organization, including incorporating the addition of Events and Parks, clearer 
job titles, and resources to support activities. 
 
S.1.5 Establish budgetary parameters for a new division structure and needs for fundraising, grants, and 
general fund allocations. 
 
2. Affordable & Accessible: Annually update and refine recreation programs and event offerings to 
ensure they are balanced, relevant, affordable, and accessible to all community members, regardless of 
age, socio-economic status, or ability.  
 
S.2.1 Establish a cost recovery policy that enables more affordable access to programs for all residents of 
all ages with reasonable fees, scholarships, and revenue generation targets. 
 
S.2.2 Explore need and roles of a Committee Advisory Group to provide input and feedback on new 
programs and activities and to support relevant and valuable services. 
 
S.2.3 Expand and develop relationships with educational organizations outside of the City to promote 
internships and increase availability of teen programs. 
 
S.2.4 Optimize the use of parks, facilities, and partner locations to pilot and offer programs throughout 
the City. 
 
S.2.5 Systematically evaluate and update programs and program offerings to ensure that they serve the 
community as a whole. 
 
3. Maximize Facilities: By 2022, complete an assessment of all city facilities and prioritize renovations, 
additions, and ongoing maintenance to maximize the function and flexibility to support the Division’s 
mission.  
 

8.A.2

Packet Pg. 72

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 F
ra

m
ew

o
rk

_F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T
  (

R
ec

re
at

io
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

)



 
 
 
 
 

 

  January 30, 2020 

S.3.1. Inventory existing City Recreation and Parks and Facilities, survey the community and conduct a 
Needs Assessment. 
 
S.3.2 Prioritize facility upgrades to support program offerings, improve efficiencies, and broaden 
services to the community. 
 
S.3. Identify and help develop additional park facilities and recreation programs associated with new 
developments or other available resources. 
 
4. Partnerships: In 2020, establish partnership agreements with the school district, library and other city 
organizations to secure use of facilities and shared use to expand ability to provide a range of services. 
 
S.4.1 Cooperate with School District to establish a long-term memorandum of understanding (MOU) 
regarding the shared use and programming of City and District facilities.  
 
S.4.2 Establish a MOU with the library for programming and use of facilities at the new Capitola Library. 
 
S.4.3 Foster relationships with other public and private recreation, event, and park providers to 
coordinate and amplify opportunities to serve residents. 
 
S.4.4 Pursue grants and other funding with partners, building on the benefits of shared resources and 
cooperative services.  
 
 
 

8.A.2

Packet Pg. 73

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 F
ra

m
ew

o
rk

_F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T
  (

R
ec

re
at

io
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF NOVEMBER 24, 2020

FROM: Capitola Police Department

SUBJECT: Village Bollard Project

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt the proposed resolution accepting California Governor’s 
Office of Emergency Services Grant funds for the City’s FY19 State Homeland Security Grant 
Project 005 - Portable Bollard/Security Barriers, and amending the FY19-20 budget.

BACKGROUND: The City of Capitola hosts several large-scale special events each year. 
Events such as the Capitola Public Safety & Community Service Foundation Car Show, the 
Annual Wharf to Wharf Race and the Capitola Art and Wine Festival provide a venue for large 
crowds (averaging 15-20k participants) that gather together on City streets in the highly 
congested three-block Capitola Village area. Police and Public Works staff are tasked with 
providing a secure venue with safe ingress and egress for participants and visitors. 

To prevent vehicular access to the Village area during events, staff currently places signage and 
wooden/plastic barricades which are then supported by designated personnel to enforce the 
closure. The proposed project is for the installation of removable pipe and concrete bollards,
designed to provide enhanced protection while allowing access to pedestrians. 

DISCUSSION: City staff is proposing the installation of removable bollards to improve safety for 
pedestrians and more effectively manage large scale special events in the Capitola Village area. 
Research conducted by staff concluded that many jurisdictions utilize removable pipe and/or 
concrete bollards to provide enhanced protection and deter potential criminal activity while also 
improving pedestrian access to the venue. Bollards provide both a visual deterrence and physical 
means of preventing vehicular traffic from entering the special event area. The proposed project 
creates a safer means for public access to the coast and recreational opportunities in Capitola 
Village during special events.

The proposed bollard security system meets the State’s Homeland Security Goals to “Protect 
Critical Infrastructure and Key Resources from All Threats and Hazards; Enhance Community 
Preparedness; and Prevent Violent Extremism through Multi-Jurisdictional/Inter-Jurisdictional 
Collaboration and Coordination.”  Grant funding for the project is available through the California 
Governor’s Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES) and under the State Homeland Security 
Grant Program (HSGP). In collaboration with Santa Cruz County, staff applied for such a grant 
in November 2019 (Attachment 2). In April 2020 CalOES approved Santa Cruz County’s grant 
application, which included $40,526 funding for the City of Capitola for Project. The performance 
period for this grant is September 1, 2019 - May 31, 2022.

8.B

Packet Pg. 74



Village Bollard Project 
November 24, 2020

The bollards would be installed at three strategic locations; 1) Esplanade and Stockton Avenue, 
2) Capitola Avenue and Stockton Avenue and 3) Monterey Avenue and Park Place. These 
intersections are always “closed” to vehicles when the Village is closed for special events. In 
addition to enhanced physical protection, these closures will no longer need to be guarded; 
allowing for personnel to be more effectively deployed in the Village area and to better minimize 
security concerns. 

The proposed resolution (Attachment 1) accepts the $40,526 grant funding for staff to 
implement the project and build and install removable bollards at the identified sites. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Funding for this project comes in the form of a grant from the Cal OES. The 
total estimated project cost for materials and installation is anticipated to be less than or equal to 
the grant funding amount of $40,526. At this time no need for General Fund money or other 
budget transfers are anticipated to complete the project.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Reso Accepting Homeland Security Grant for Bollards
2. Grant Application Capitola Bollard project 2019-035
3. Vacaville bollards
4. Map of Bollard Placement
5. Budget Amendment - Bollard Grant Project

Report Prepared By:  Terry McManus
Police Chief

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

8.B

Packet Pg. 75



 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. ___ 
 

 RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
ACCEPTING THE CALIFORNIA GOVERNOR’S OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICES 

GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF $40,526  
AND AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2020-21 BUDGET 

 
 WHEREAS, the Capitola Police Department is a recipient of a California Governor’s Office 
of Emergency Services (Cal OES) grant under the Department of Homeland Security Grant 
Program; and 
 

 WHEREAS, a budget amendment must be enacted before funds can be accepted and 
expended for their intended and legally mandated purposes. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Capitola hereby 
accepts a Cal OES State of California Department of Homeland Security Grant Project 005 – 
Portable Bollard/Security Barriers for $40,526, and authorizes an amendment to the FY 2020-21 
Capital Improvement Program budget by increasing both revenues and expenditures by $40,526 as 
follows: 
 

Category FY 2020-21 Budget Amendment 

Revenue  

State Government Grants                                            $40,526 
  

Expenditures  

Construction Services - Projects                                          $ 40,526 

 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Finance Department shall record these changes into 
the City's accounting records in accordance with appropriate accounting practices. 
 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that these grants will be expended pursuant to the conditions 
of the grant program. 
 

 I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing resolution was passed and adopted by 
the City Council of the City of Capitola at its regular meeting held on the 24th day of November, 
2020, by the following vote: 
 

AYES:   
NOES:   
ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN:  

  
     
 
        ________________________________ 
        Kristen Petersen, Mayor 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
________________________________ 
  Chloé Woodmansee, City Clerk 

8.B.1

Packet Pg. 76

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

 A
cc

ep
ti

n
g

 H
o

m
el

an
d

 S
ec

u
ri

ty
 G

ra
n

t 
fo

r 
B

o
lla

rd
s 

 (
V

ill
ag

e 
B

o
lla

rd
 P

ro
je

ct
)



8.B.2

Packet Pg. 77

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 C
ap

it
o

la
 B

o
lla

rd
 p

ro
je

ct
 2

01
9-

03
5 

 (
V

ill
ag

e 
B

o
lla

rd
 P

ro
je

ct
)



8.B.2

Packet Pg. 78

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 C
ap

it
o

la
 B

o
lla

rd
 p

ro
je

ct
 2

01
9-

03
5 

 (
V

ill
ag

e 
B

o
lla

rd
 P

ro
je

ct
)



8.B.2

Packet Pg. 79

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 C
ap

it
o

la
 B

o
lla

rd
 p

ro
je

ct
 2

01
9-

03
5 

 (
V

ill
ag

e 
B

o
lla

rd
 P

ro
je

ct
)



8.B.2

Packet Pg. 80

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 C
ap

it
o

la
 B

o
lla

rd
 p

ro
je

ct
 2

01
9-

03
5 

 (
V

ill
ag

e 
B

o
lla

rd
 P

ro
je

ct
)



8.B.2

Packet Pg. 81

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 C
ap

it
o

la
 B

o
lla

rd
 p

ro
je

ct
 2

01
9-

03
5 

 (
V

ill
ag

e 
B

o
lla

rd
 P

ro
je

ct
)



8.B.2

Packet Pg. 82

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 C
ap

it
o

la
 B

o
lla

rd
 p

ro
je

ct
 2

01
9-

03
5 

 (
V

ill
ag

e 
B

o
lla

rd
 P

ro
je

ct
)



8.B.2

Packet Pg. 83

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 C
ap

it
o

la
 B

o
lla

rd
 p

ro
je

ct
 2

01
9-

03
5 

 (
V

ill
ag

e 
B

o
lla

rd
 P

ro
je

ct
)



8.B.2

Packet Pg. 84

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 C
ap

it
o

la
 B

o
lla

rd
 p

ro
je

ct
 2

01
9-

03
5 

 (
V

ill
ag

e 
B

o
lla

rd
 P

ro
je

ct
)



8.B.2

Packet Pg. 85

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 C
ap

it
o

la
 B

o
lla

rd
 p

ro
je

ct
 2

01
9-

03
5 

 (
V

ill
ag

e 
B

o
lla

rd
 P

ro
je

ct
)



8.B.2

Packet Pg. 86

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 C
ap

it
o

la
 B

o
lla

rd
 p

ro
je

ct
 2

01
9-

03
5 

 (
V

ill
ag

e 
B

o
lla

rd
 P

ro
je

ct
)



8.B.2

Packet Pg. 87

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 C
ap

it
o

la
 B

o
lla

rd
 p

ro
je

ct
 2

01
9-

03
5 

 (
V

ill
ag

e 
B

o
lla

rd
 P

ro
je

ct
)



8.B.2

Packet Pg. 88

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 C
ap

it
o

la
 B

o
lla

rd
 p

ro
je

ct
 2

01
9-

03
5 

 (
V

ill
ag

e 
B

o
lla

rd
 P

ro
je

ct
)



8.B.2

Packet Pg. 89

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 C
ap

it
o

la
 B

o
lla

rd
 p

ro
je

ct
 2

01
9-

03
5 

 (
V

ill
ag

e 
B

o
lla

rd
 P

ro
je

ct
)



8.B.2

Packet Pg. 90

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 C
ap

it
o

la
 B

o
lla

rd
 p

ro
je

ct
 2

01
9-

03
5 

 (
V

ill
ag

e 
B

o
lla

rd
 P

ro
je

ct
)



8.B.2

Packet Pg. 91

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 C
ap

it
o

la
 B

o
lla

rd
 p

ro
je

ct
 2

01
9-

03
5 

 (
V

ill
ag

e 
B

o
lla

rd
 P

ro
je

ct
)



8.B.3

Packet Pg. 92

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 V

ac
av

ill
e



8.B.4

Packet Pg. 93

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

ap
 o

f 
B

o
lla

rd
 P

la
ce

m
en

t 
 (

V
ill

ag
e 

B
o

lla
rd

 P
ro

je
ct

)



8.B.5

Packet Pg. 94

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t 
- 

B
o

lla
rd

 G
ra

n
t 

P
ro

je
ct

  (
V

ill
ag

e 
B

o
lla

rd
 P

ro
je

ct
)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF NOVEMBER 24, 2020

FROM: Public Works Department

SUBJECT: Approve the Plans, Specifications, and Engineer's Estimate for the  Capitola 
Avenue Sidewalk Improvement Project and  Authorize Advertising for Bids

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the plans, specifications, and construction estimate for the 
Capitola Avenue Sidewalk Improvement Project and authorize advertising for bids.

BACKGROUND: The Capitola Avenue Sidewalk Improvement project is included in the City’s 
adopted Capital Improvement Program. The project involves the reconstruction of the elevated 
sidewalk fronting 318, 324, and 328 Capitola Avenue and improves the adjacent street parking 
by leveling out this area and constructing a short retaining wall. The plans and specifications 
have been completed and the project is ready to bid.  

DISCUSSION: Public Works staff has met with and discussed the project with the property 
owners and some tenants at 318, 324, and 328 Capitola Avenue. These properties will be 
impacted during construction due the removal of the sidewalk, which will require closure of their 
usual primary access. Access to all buildings will be maintained with temporary means. The 
owners/tenants are supportive of the project and staff has committed to work with them during 
construction to minimize impacts. The project specifications require the City to maintain 
pedestrian access to the buildings throughout the project.

A reduced set of plans is included as Attachment 1.  The engineer’s estimate (Attachment 2) is 
$116,000.

The proposed project schedule is as follows:

Plan approval November 24, 2020

Bid Opening January 6, 2021

Contract Award January 14, 2021

Construction Winter/Spring 2021

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Budget:  $200,000

8.C

Packet Pg. 95



Capitola Avenue Sidewalk Project to bid 
November 24, 2020

Expenditures:
Engineering design $  66,000 
Construction (estimated) $116,000
Total $182,000

Contingency: $  18,000

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Capitola Ave Sidewalk_Plans_A_20201030
2. Capitola Ave Sidewalk_Estimate_A_20201030

Report Prepared By:  Steve Jesberg
Public Works Director

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

8.C

Packet Pg. 96



8.C.1

Packet Pg. 97

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 A
ve

 S
id

ew
al

k_
P

la
n

s_
A

_2
02

01
03

0 
 (

C
ap

it
o

la
 A

ve
n

u
e 

S
id

ew
al

k 
P

ro
je

ct
 t

o
 b

id
)



8.C.1

Packet Pg. 98

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 A
ve

 S
id

ew
al

k_
P

la
n

s_
A

_2
02

01
03

0 
 (

C
ap

it
o

la
 A

ve
n

u
e 

S
id

ew
al

k 
P

ro
je

ct
 t

o
 b

id
)



8.C.1

Packet Pg. 99

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 A
ve

 S
id

ew
al

k_
P

la
n

s_
A

_2
02

01
03

0 
 (

C
ap

it
o

la
 A

ve
n

u
e 

S
id

ew
al

k 
P

ro
je

ct
 t

o
 b

id
)



8.C.1

Packet Pg. 100

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 A
ve

 S
id

ew
al

k_
P

la
n

s_
A

_2
02

01
03

0 
 (

C
ap

it
o

la
 A

ve
n

u
e 

S
id

ew
al

k 
P

ro
je

ct
 t

o
 b

id
)



8.C.1

Packet Pg. 101

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 A
ve

 S
id

ew
al

k_
P

la
n

s_
A

_2
02

01
03

0 
 (

C
ap

it
o

la
 A

ve
n

u
e 

S
id

ew
al

k 
P

ro
je

ct
 t

o
 b

id
)



8.C.1

Packet Pg. 102

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 A
ve

 S
id

ew
al

k_
P

la
n

s_
A

_2
02

01
03

0 
 (

C
ap

it
o

la
 A

ve
n

u
e 

S
id

ew
al

k 
P

ro
je

ct
 t

o
 b

id
)



8.C.1

Packet Pg. 103

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 A
ve

 S
id

ew
al

k_
P

la
n

s_
A

_2
02

01
03

0 
 (

C
ap

it
o

la
 A

ve
n

u
e 

S
id

ew
al

k 
P

ro
je

ct
 t

o
 b

id
)



8.C.1

Packet Pg. 104

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 A
ve

 S
id

ew
al

k_
P

la
n

s_
A

_2
02

01
03

0 
 (

C
ap

it
o

la
 A

ve
n

u
e 

S
id

ew
al

k 
P

ro
je

ct
 t

o
 b

id
)



8.C.1

Packet Pg. 105

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 A
ve

 S
id

ew
al

k_
P

la
n

s_
A

_2
02

01
03

0 
 (

C
ap

it
o

la
 A

ve
n

u
e 

S
id

ew
al

k 
P

ro
je

ct
 t

o
 b

id
)



8.C.1

Packet Pg. 106

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 A
ve

 S
id

ew
al

k_
P

la
n

s_
A

_2
02

01
03

0 
 (

C
ap

it
o

la
 A

ve
n

u
e 

S
id

ew
al

k 
P

ro
je

ct
 t

o
 b

id
)



Client: City of Capitola
Project: Capitola Avenue Sidewalk

KHA No.: 097763134
Title: Engineering Opinion of Probable Construction Cost

Submittal: Final PS&E Design - Schedule A

Item Description
Estimated 
Quantity

Unit Unit Price Total

1 Mobilization 1 LS $10,600.00 $10,600.00

2 Construction Area Signs 1 LS $1,000.00 $1,000

3 Traffic Control System 1 LS $5,000.00 $5,000

4 Survey and Construction Staking 1 LS $5,000.00 $5,000

5 Temporary Water Pollution Control and Erosion Control 1 LS $4,000.00 $4,000

6 Relocate Water Utility Box 1 EA $2,000.00 $2,000

7 Relocate Sanitary Sewer Clean Out Box 1 EA $2,000.00 $2,000
8 Adjust Water Utility Box to Grade 1 EA $800.00 $800
9 Adjust Communication Utility Box to Grade 1 EA $800.00 $800
10 Adjust Cable Utility Box to Grade 1 EA $800.00 $800
11 Adjust Storm Drain Inlet to Grade 1 EA $2,000.00 $2,000
12 Adjust Parking Meter to Grade 2 EA $400.00 $800
13 Salvage Pedestrian Railing 107 LF $20.00 $2,140
14 Roadway Excavation 43 CY $250.00 $10,851

15 Aggregate Base (Class 2) 12 CY $90.00 $1,070

16 Hot Mix Asphalt (Type A) 5 TON $450.00 $2,297

17 Minor Concrete (Curb and Gutter) 107 LF $40.00 $4,295

18 Minor Concrete (Sidewalk) 718 SQFT $25.00 $17,956

19 Minor Concrete (Curb Ramp) 187 SQFT $25.00 $4,667

20 Detectable Warning Surface 15 SQFT $45.00 $681

21 Curb Drain (City) 1 EA $800.00 $800

22 Retaining Wall Type 1 (Cast In Place) 85 LF $400.00 $34,000

23 Relocate Roadside Sign 1 EA $300.00 $300

24 Wood Mulch 5 CY $100.00 $525

25 Brick Paver 21 SF $60.00 $1,260

Bid Total Total $115,641

Rounded 116,000$               

SCHEDULE A ESTIMATE

Total‐20201030

8.C.2

Packet Pg. 107

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 A
ve

 S
id

ew
al

k_
E

st
im

at
e_

A
_2

02
01

03
0 

 (
C

ap
it

o
la

 A
ve

n
u

e 
S

id
ew

al
k 

P
ro

je
ct

 t
o

 b
id

)


	Agenda Packet
	CLOSED SESSION
	REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
	1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	A. Roll Call

	2. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION
	3. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS
	4. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA
	5. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	6. CITY COUNCIL / STAFF COMMENTS
	7. CONSENT CALENDAR
	A. Approve Council Minutes
	Printout: Approve Council Minutes
	1. 11-12 draft

	B. Approval of City Check Registers
	Printout: Approval of City Check Registers
	1. 10-16-20 Check Register
	2. 10-23-20 Check Register
	3. 10-30-20 Check Register
	4. 11-6-20 Check Register
	5. 11-13-20 Check Register

	C. Annual Special Event Update
	Printout: Annual Special Event Update

	D. COVID-19 Emergency- Update 15
	Printout: COVID-19 Emergency- Update 15


	8. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS
	A. Recreation Strategic Plan
	Printout: Recreation Strategic Plan
	1. Capitola Strategic Plan_FinalF
	2. Strategic Framework_FINAL DRAFT

	B. Village Bollard Project
	Printout: Village Bollard Project
	1. Reso Accepting Homeland Security Grant for Bollards
	2. Grant Application Capitola Bollard project 2019-035
	3. Vacaville bollards
	4. Map of Bollard Placement
	5. Budget Amendment - Bollard Grant Project

	C. Capitola Avenue Sidewalk Project to bid
	Printout: Capitola Avenue Sidewalk Project to bid
	1. Capitola Ave Sidewalk_Plans_A_20201030
	2. Capitola Ave Sidewalk_Estimate_A_20201030


	9. ADJOURNMENT

	Appendix
	7.A · Approve Council Minutes
	7.A.1 · 11-12 draft

	7.B · Approval of City Check Registers
	7.B.1 · 10-16-20 Check Register
	7.B.2 · 10-23-20 Check Register
	7.B.3 · 10-30-20 Check Register
	7.B.4 · 11-6-20 Check Register
	7.B.5 · 11-13-20 Check Register

	7.C · Annual Special Event Update
	7.D · COVID-19 Emergency- Update 15
	8.A · Recreation Strategic Plan
	8.A.1 · Capitola Strategic Plan_FinalF
	8.A.2 · Strategic Framework_FINAL DRAFT

	8.B · Village Bollard Project
	8.B.1 · Reso Accepting Homeland Security Grant for Bollards
	8.B.2 · Grant Application Capitola Bollard project 2019-035
	8.B.3 · Vacaville bollards
	8.B.4 · Map of Bollard Placement
	8.B.5 · Budget Amendment - Bollard Grant Project

	8.C · Capitola Avenue Sidewalk Project to bid
	8.C.1 · Capitola Ave Sidewalk_Plans_A_20201030
	8.C.2 · Capitola Ave Sidewalk_Estimate_A_20201030



